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Employee Benefits Brokerage and Consulting Services
Addendum #1
1. USI previously participated in the Indiana Aggregate Pharmacy Purchasing Program (IAPPP) for PBM services and later received approval from the State of Indiana to carve out of that program.  Could you please confirm USI’s current PBM provider following the transition effective January 1, 2025?
USI’s current PBM is NFP RX Solutions.  When the University left the Indiana Aggregate Pharmacy Purchasing Program in January 2025 it had to be approved by the State Budget Director and was only approved for two years.  It’s possible the approval could be extended beyond two years depending on the continued financial benefits experienced.  Good reporting and analysis will be needed on this well in advance of our renewal for USI to see request for an extension from the State Budget Director. 

1. Is USI’s current data analytics platform provided through Aon, or was it procured independently of the brokerage relationship? 
Springbuk is sourced through NFP’s preferred broker channel and paid for by USI.  

1. Data Request: Would USI be willing to share data elements to help us better understand the current state of the program. Our goal would be to thoughtfully incorporate our observations into our RFP response. Further, should we be fortunate to advance to the finalist phase, we’d also bring forth these observations into our meeting.  The data elements we would be interested in gathering are the following.  We would be happy to work under an NDA. 
Employee Benefits Data Request: Medical/Rx Coverages
· Demographic Census (All employees including active, retiree, COBRA and those waiving coverage): including DOB, DOH, Gender, Home Zip Code, Plan elected by Tier [Ee, Ee/Spouse, Ee/Child(ren), Family, Waived)     
· SPD or Certificate: schedule of benefits or plan design   
· Claims: month-by-month paid claims experience, broken down by medical and Rx, with corresponding enrollment, for the past 2 years 
· Pharmacy Data: copy of prescription drug contract and most recent pharmacy review, if available.  If you receive rebates, can you please provide the previous 12 months         
· Large Claims: (> $50,000) for each year matching the loss information                            
· Rates: Current equivalent rates (COBRA rates) by tier. Additionally, please also provide full rates on the retiree plans.
· Contributions: the current cost sharing arrangement between company and plan participant, by coverage tier             
· Benefits Guide / Enrollment Guide: Copy of most recent open enrollment benefits guide. If available, prior two years would be helpful.    
· Stop Loss Contract: copy of stop loss (specific deductible, rate, contract basis) contract, if available     

USI is not providing this data at this stage of the RFP process. If your firm is selected as a finalist, this information may be made available at that time. Please click below to access the information that is available.  
2026 Insurance Renewal Board Presentation (November 6, 2025) 
	Benefit Highlights – Support Staff (Non-Exempt)
	Benefit Highlights – Faculty and Administrators (Exempt)     
1. What are your top 3 benefits priorities for 2026? 
3. Develop Timely, Creative Approaches to Competitive, Sustainable Benefits
Advance innovative strategies that strengthen the competitiveness, short-term, and long‑term sustainability of the University’s benefits program. This includes maintaining meaningful, accessible coverage while supporting recruitment and retention in a competitive higher‑education market. Given that Open Enrollment occurs in October, USI seeks to implement approaches that enable earlier completion of enrollment activities to support timely processing and communication.
3.  Develop and Implement Short‑ and Long‑Term Strategies to Reduce Healthcare Costs
Use data‑driven analytics, benchmarking, strategic planning, and alignment with University budget priorities to manage rising healthcare expenses. Focus on forecasting, plan design evaluation, and targeted cost‑containment initiatives that preserve value for employees and retirees. Earlier completion of Open Enrollment will also support more accurate forecasting and cost modeling for the upcoming plan year.
3.  Strengthen Broker Support for Customer Service, Call Center Operations, Reporting, and Compliance
Enhance broker partnership to ensure employees and retirees receive responsive, high‑quality customer service through improved call center operations. Expand reporting and analytics to support data‑driven decision‑making, while reinforcing compliance with federal, state, and plan‑level requirements to protect the University and ensure consistent, accurate benefits administration. As part of this support, USI seeks a partner who can help streamline and accelerate Open Enrollment processes to ensure all enrollments are completed earlier in the cycle.
1. Looking forward to one year post RFP, how will the USI team define success with its selected benefits consulting partner? 
One year post‑RFP, USI will consider the relationship successful if the selected consultant has:
1. Demonstrated Strategic Impact and Cost Stewardship
· Provided clear, actionable strategies that support both short‑ and long‑term cost management.
· Helped USI maintain low‑to‑moderate premium adjustments while preserving meaningful, competitive coverage.
· Delivered accurate forecasting that improves institutional planning and budget stability.

2. Elevated Insight Through Robust Data, Reporting, and Benchmarking
· Supplied timely, comprehensive reporting that enhances decision‑making and identifies emerging trends.
· Leveraged national and regional benchmark data to validate plan competitiveness and guide plan design.
· Offered advanced claims analysis that highlights opportunities for cost containment and improved member value.

3. Strengthened Compliance, Communication, and Employee Support
· Ensured USI remains fully prepared for regulatory changes through proactive compliance guidance.
· Enhanced employee understanding and engagement through clear, accessible benefits communication.
· Provided responsive, high‑quality customer service that supports HR operations and improves the employee experience.

4. Built a Collaborative, Trusted Advisory Relationship
· Acted as a proactive thought partner who anticipates needs, brings forward innovative solutions, and supports USI’s long‑term benefits strategy.
· Demonstrated reliability, transparency, and consistent follow‑through on commitments.
· Integrated seamlessly with USI’s HR team, contributing to a smooth, efficient benefits administration process.

1. We saw on your benefits website, details regarding the Time To Get Fit Program. Is there an additional Wellness Program in place?  Can you share the specific details, short- and long-term goals and any identified KPIs? 
What does success look like for this program? How long has this program been in place?
The Time to Get Fit Program is the only wellness program currently in place at USI. The program has been in place for at least 15 years. Additional wellness programs are not in place at this time.
1. Is there currently a call center in place? Can you share the provider’s details and usage metrics if available?
A dedicated benefits call center is not currently in place at the University of Southern Indiana. At this time, all employee and retiree inquiries are handled internally by the Human Resources team. As the University continues to grow and the complexity of benefits administration increases, establishing a reliable, well‑supported call center will be an important priority. USI is seeking a consulting partner that can provide or coordinate high‑quality customer service support, including call center operations, to ensure timely, accurate assistance for both current employees and retirees.

1. Who creates current communications materials, i.e., flyers, notices, educational communications, open enrollment and new hire guides?
Most benefits communication materials, including flyers, notices, educational pieces, and new‑hire resources, are currently developed internally by the University of Southern Indiana’s Benefits Team. The primary exception is the annual Open Enrollment Guide, which is produced with by our current broker. Given the small size of the Benefits Team and the growing need for consistent, accessible, and professionally designed materials, USI is seeking a consulting partner who can take the lead in developing comprehensive, high‑quality communications. This includes creating clear, engaging, and compliant materials for Open Enrollment, new‑hire onboarding, plan changes, and year‑round employee and retiree education.

1. What methods does USI utilize to communicate and educate your population? 
Website, Open enrollment fair, webinars, lunch and learns, training sessions throughout the year, social media, place in central University Communication called USI Today that is distributed twice a week. 

1. Is there a current communications strategy with defined goals and objectives? If yes, can you share?
USI does not currently have a formal, documented communications strategy specific to employee and retiree benefits. While the Benefits Team utilizes multiple communication channels and produces a variety of materials throughout the year, a comprehensive strategy with defined goals, objectives, timelines, and performance measures has not yet been established. The University intends to develop this strategy in collaboration with the selected consulting partner to ensure communications are consistent, accessible, data‑informed, and aligned with best practices in higher‑education benefits communication.

1. Does USI have additional communication needs? What would you like to see going forward that you aren’t receiving today?
Yes. While USI currently utilizes multiple channels to communicate benefits information, the University has several additional communication needs. Looking ahead, USI would like to see a more comprehensive, strategic, and professionally supported communication approach. Key needs include:
0. More Robust, Professionally Designed Communication Material
0. A Comprehensive, Year-Round Communication Strategy
0. Improved Employee and Retiree Engagement
0. Stronger Support for Customer Service and Call Center Integration
0. Data-Informed Communication Approaches

1. Are you receiving monthly financial reporting? If so, would you consider providing?
Please see response to question 3. 

1. Have any eligibility management strategies been implemented or considered previously?
Yes. USI has implemented eligibility management strategies in the past. The University conducted its first comprehensive dependent eligibility audit in 2023, ensuring that all dependents enrolled in USI’s benefit plans met required eligibility criteria. Since completing that audit, USI has maintained ongoing procedures to validate dependent eligibility, reinforcing data accuracy, compliance, and responsible stewardship of plan resources. The University anticipates continuing to refine and expand eligibility management practices in partnership with the selected consultant.
1. Do you conduct employee engagement or benefits surveys? If so, are you willing to share the most recent survey results?
USI has not conducted an employee engagement or benefits‑specific survey within the last five years. The University recognizes the value of gathering employee and retiree feedback to inform plan design, communication strategies, and overall benefits satisfaction. As part of our long‑term strategy, USI anticipates conducting a comprehensive benefits survey within the next one to two years and looks forward to partnering with the selected consultant to design, administer, and analyze this survey to ensure meaningful, actionable insights.

1. How would you best describe the desired position of your employee benefits offering in relation to market norms? For instance, above market, below market, or in line with market.
USI aims to maintain an employee benefits offering that is above market to market, aligned with University financial capacity and grounded in responsible stewardship given the continued rise in health‑care costs.

1. What role do benchmarking and peer comparisons play in benefit design decisions?  Are there specific peer institutions and/or other employers you compare yourself to?

Benchmarking and peer comparisons play a critical role in USI’s benefits design and strategic planning. The University relies on benchmarking to ensure its benefits remain competitive, sustainable, and aligned with both higher‑education standards and the local labor market, especially as financial pressures, including reduced state funding and rising healthcare costs, require more responsive and data‑driven decision‑making.
USI uses benchmarking to:
· Evaluate the competitiveness of plan design, premiums, and employer contributions
· Identify trends and best practices within higher education and the regional market
· Support short‑term and long‑term cost‑management strategies
· Inform decisions that balance employee value with institutional budget realities

USI typically benchmarks against:
· Higher‑education peers, specifically public universities with budgets similar to USI
· Local and regional employers competing for similar talent pools
· National higher‑education benchmarking sources, such as CUPA‑HR, when appropriate


1. Are there any concerns with the current BenAdmin system / service (Benefitfocus)?
Yes. USI has concerns with Benefitfocus, as it does not support the full automation and integration the University requires. USI will be exploring alternative solutions and expects the selected broker to lead and guide us through this transition to a more efficient, fully integrated BenAdmin platform.

1. What area of your total rewards strategy, if any, are you looking to improve? Where do you feel you’re most competitive?

Respondents are asked to quote a fixed, annual fee for the services on a net commission basis. Should that fee be based solely on the scope of services outlined in section 3.2.1 – 3.2.9 or should there be other services outside of the scope that should be taken into consideration?
The quoted fixed, annual fee should include all services outlined in Sections 3.2.1 – 3.2.9 of the RFP. If your firm offers additional services or creative strategies that fall outside this scope, but can demonstrate a clear return on investment, particularly in reducing medical costs, USI welcomes you to share those recommendations and associated costs. Any such items would be considered separately and would not be part of this RFP’s required fee structure.
 
1. Will all respondents receive the same answers and corresponding information related to any questions answered (documents, data sets, etc), or only specific to the ask being made?
All respondents will receive the same answers and information. 

1. Is this the only time in the process to ask questions, or will there be an opportunity to ask questions around USIs current benefits strategy, cost, history, plans, etc, prior to any finalist meeting, if awarded the opportunity to present? 
This is the only opportunity to submit questions during the initial RFP process. Finalists will be provided additional information and will have the opportunity to ask questions prior to their campus visit.

1. The RFP states that USI provides coverage to 474 retirees:
0. Are retirees on the group plan or their own plan? 
Retirees and their dependents under age 65 may enroll in two of the University’s three active medical plans, which are the Core PPO and the Surest Plan. Once retirees or their dependents reach age 65, they are no longer eligible for the University’s self-insured medical plans and are transitioned to the University’s Medicare Advantage Plan. Amwins manages retiree premiums for the University and oversees the transition process at age 65, ensuring a smooth shift to Medicare Advantage coverage.

0. Are retirees or their families eligible after Medicare eligibility. 
Yes, please see prior answer.
 
0. Is the program part of a collective bargaining agreement?
No. The program is not part of a collective bargaining agreement.

0. Is retiree contribution amounts part of any contract, collective bargaining or otherwise?
No. Retiree contribution amounts are not part of any contract or collective bargaining agreement.

1. Please confirm the University’s medical and pharmacy plans are currently self-funded. 
Both the University’s medical and pharmacy plans are self‑funded for active employees and for retirees and dependents under age 65. Post‑65 retiree coverage is provided through a fully insured Medicare Advantage plan.

1. Please provide a list of all carriers and vendors along with the lines of coverage being provided by each carrier / vendor, and how each line of coverage is funded (self-funded, fully insured, etc.).
Please see response to question 3. 

1. Is there an Employee Benefit Guide (OE Guide) available for review?  
Please see response to question 3. 

1. How is “Historic New Harmony” related to the Employee Benefits broker RFP?  
Historic New Harmony is a unit of the University of Southern Indiana and is located off main campus. Its inclusion in the RFP materials reflects its status as part of the University, but it does not have a separate role in the employee benefits broker selection process.

1. Who manages your Leave?  Internal, External, Vendor?  
Leave administration is managed internally by the University.

1. Are your current 1095-Cs being generated by your payroll provider, and if so, who is your payroll provider?  
Our 1095‑C forms are generated through Benefitfocus.

1. Who is your current Pharmacy Benefit Manager?  CVS Caremark
27. Is the Pharmacy integrated “bundled” with the Medical?  
No. The pharmacy benefit is not bundled with the medical plan; they are administered separately.

27. Is the Pharmacy Benefit Manager purchased through a pharmacy consortium?  
Yes, currently through the NFP Rx Solution Consortium. 

1. Are any of your active employees or retirees’ part of a CBA?  
Please see response to question 21. 
 
1. Are the retirees covered under a separate plan or included in your self-funded plan?  
Reitrees and dependents under 65 are covered under the self-funded plan. Retirees and dependents over 65 are on a fully funded Medicare Advantage Plan. 

1. Brand Guidelines & Formatting
1. Do we have permission to incorporate USI's logo and brand colors within our proposal response? 
Yes. You may use the University of Southern Indiana’s logo and brand colors in your proposal response for this RFP. This approval applies only to this submission. Any future use will require separate authorization from the University.

2. Should we follow the formatting requirements outlined in Section 4, or use the questionnaire format provided in Exhibit A?
There is no preference regarding formatting. You may follow the requirements in Section 4 or use the questionnaire format provided in Exhibit A, as long as all required information is submitted. 

1. Insurance Certificates
Is it mandatory to add USI to our certificates of insurance at this stage, or may we simply submit our existing COIs as proof of coverage? 
No. Certificates of Insurance are not required at this stage. COIs will only be required for the broker selected through this RFP process.
 
1. Census & Plan Details
1. Are the 474 retirees included in the 837 enrolled employees, or are these separate populations?
Please see response to question 21.

2. Of your retirees over age 65, are they covered under Medicare primary, employer primary, or a combination?
Please see response to question 21.

3. What is the current funding arrangement for medical/Rx/dental—fully insured or self-funded?
Medical and pharmacy benefits are self‑funded. Dental coverage is fully insured.

1. Current Program Information
1. Who are your current carriers for medical, dental, vision, life, and disability? Do you offer any voluntary lines of coverage?
Please see the carriers listed in the 2026 Insurance Renewal Board Presentation (November 6, 2025), referenced in response to Question 3.

2. What are the current plan designs and employee/employer contribution structures?
Please see response to question 3. 

3. Do retirees have access to the same plans as active employees?
Please see response to question 21.

4. Who currently handles COBRA administration? 
COBRA administration is handled by Voya.

5. What wellness programs or population health initiatives are currently in place?
Please see response to question 6. 

6. What is your current HRIS/benefits administration platform?  
Ellucian Banner is the University’s HRIS. Benefitfocus is used as the Benefits Administration platform.
